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The Ancient City of Pingyao

The ancient city of Pingyao, deep in central Shanxi
Province, is 100 kilometers from the provincial capital
of Taiyuan. A direct train from Beijing takes just over
half a night to reach there. Shanxi is a province in China
with the largest number of ancient buildings still in
good preservation, and Pingyao, the first tourist city in
Shanxi Province designated by UNESCO as a World
Culwral Heritage site. The UNESCO gave such evalu-
ations to Pingyao:
the ancient city of
Pingyao is an out-
standing example
of the city of the
Han people in the
Ming and Qing
dynasties in
China. It exposes
the development
of culture,
society, economy
and religion in the course of the Chinese history.

The history of Pingyao, named Pingtao in ancient
times, can be traced as far back as to 2,700 years ago,
the period of King Xuan (827-782 B.C.) of the Western
Zhou Period. The earthen city built at that time was for
defending the invasion of enemies. Since the first year
of the founding of the Northern Wei Dynasty in 424,
Pingyao has long been served as the place of county
government. The existing wall of the city was built in

the third year of Emperor Hongwu (1370) of the Ming
Dynasty (1368-1644) when the city was being enlarged.
The original city wall was made of clay and was then
enveloped by bricks during expansion. The solid city
wall protected the ancient city from the flood caused
by the rainstorm in August 1977.

The ancient city is enclosed by a wall of 6.4
kilometers in total length, 6-10 meters wide at the base
and 3-6 meters wide at the top. Two horse-drawn
carriages can run side by side on the top of the city wall.
Protruding bastions are built on the outside of the wall
at intervals of about 80 meters with a watchtower on
each of them, so that soldiers guarding the city could
shoot at invaders in crossfire to attack those who were
close to the tower or were climbing up the city wall.
There are altogether 71 watchtowers, one tower of God
of Literature and 3,000 crenels to stand for Confucins'
72 prominent scholars and 3,000 disciples when he
toured the states. There are four watchtowers at four
comers of the city wall and there are six cily gates in
four sides of the city. When Emperor Kangxi of the
Qing Dynasty (1644-1911) passed Pingyao on his
western tour of inspection in the 43rd year of his reign
(1703), great gate towers were built on four sides of the
city wall to give the city a more imposing look. There
is a city moat outside the city wall with three meter both
in width and depth. In the Ming and Qing dynasties,
there was a tilt bridge linking the banks of the moat.
During the daytime, the bridge was laid down for
passengers; at night, the bridge would be lifted to
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protect the city. There is an enclosed city wall outside
each of the city gates with an inner and an outer gate in
it. When a suspicious character was found. an alarm
would be sent out to close both the inner and outer
gates, so that the suspicious character would be caught
like a turtle in a jar.

The layout of the city has remained basically
unchanged to the present day. The scale of ancient
cities in China obeyed the "/i" (social ranking class)
and nobody could ignore it. The capital covered nine /i
(4.5 kilometers), the province covered five to seven Ii
(2.5-3.5 kilometers) county covered three /i (1.5
kilometers).The squa}e—shaped city wall of Pingyao
fully conformed to the ranking standards of cities and
towns laid down in the Rites. The four main streets,
eight side streets and 72 alleys are clearly laid out like
the patterns on a turtle's back. The ancient city of
Pingyao was, therefore, also known as the Turtle City,
which symbolized impregnable defense, good luck
and longevity. It is said that when ancient people
constructed the city wall, they built Lutai Pagoda
inside Cixiang Temple, 13 kilometers northeast of
Pingyao, for "tying down" the Turtle City for fear that
the "turtle" might crawl away.

The inner city covers an area of 2.25 square
kilometers, with over 100 crisscross streets and alleys.
Quadrangle courtyards of residential houses and temples
are sited alongside the streets and alleys. Some two-
floor shops constructed in the Ming and Qing dynasties
were located along main streets and alleys as well.

According to statistics, there are 3,797 ancient residen-
tial houses in the city. More than 400 of them are of
high artistic and scientific values to the research on
urban architecture, the style of residence of mankind
and the cultural development since the Ming and Qing
dynasties.

There were two well-known groups of merchants,
the Shanxi Group and the Anhui Group, during the
Ming and Qing dynasties. By thc timc of the Qing
Dynasty, as the
Shanxi Group had
continued to do-
nate money to the
Qing Court, it had
established spe-
cial ties with gov-
ernment and
grown more
powerful. Pingyao
was the home base
of the Shanxi
Group of merchants. The crowded shop frents along
the streets of the ancient city and the imposing resi-
dences and courtyards of the rich merchants reflect the
glory of the Shanxi Group of merchants in their days.
The Southern Main Street that runs along the central,
north-south axis was the ancient city’s business street
during the Ming and Qing periods. The street is lined
on both sides with crowded old shops. There is the old
Changshengyuan patronized by Empress Dowager Cixi
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in the Qing Dynasty. There are also the sites of the
Xietongging, Baichuangtong and Weishengchang re-
mittance banks and the Changtaiyong Silks and Satins
Shop. Almost all the buildings in the business street
functioned as shops at the front and residential quarters
in the rear. Many of the buildings have now been
converted into tourist hostels, which offer food, lodg-
ing and a very convenient way for visitors to go out for
sightseeing and shopping. In addition, the City Tower
is a landmark
structure of the
ancient city of
Pingyao spanning
the Southern Main
Street. One may
climb up to the
second floor of the
tower and have a
panorama view of
the ancient city.
Walking
along the Western Main Street of the ancient city, there

are many tourists found in Rishengchang Remittance

Bank, also known as Museum of Chinese Remittance
Bank and the first one of such banks to be established
in China.

As commerce prospered and il took time and was
unsafe to transport huge amounts of cash over long
distances, a new kind of commercial houses — remit-
tance banks — came into being. Along with the rapid

development of business and commerce in Pingyao,
remittance banks became more prosperous. Meanwhile,
the business of remittance in places that are close to
Pingyao such as Qixian, Taigu, Jiexiu and Fengyang
counties became prosperous as well. In 1670, the
number of remittance banks grew to 33 in Shanxi
Province with over 400 branches in 85 cities in China
and in Japan, Korea, Singapore and Russia.

Most of the residential houses in Pingyao were
built in the Ming and Qing dynasties. They are con-
structed symmetrically along an axis with buildings
enclosing a courtyard. All the buildings face the court-
yard and are enclosed by a high wall, which seals them
off from the outside. This arrangement embodies the
feudal idea and concept in the construction of residen-
tial houses. The main rooms are built in the form of
brick cave dwellings. which are warm in winter and
cool in summer. The owners of the houses paid particu-
lar attention to the ormaments of the buildings, because
they symbolized power and wealth. All the houses
were built with extra fixtures, such as verandas,
geomantic towers and parapets. There are also finely
executed brick, wood and stone carvings, pierced oma-
mental walls, lattice-works and sign boards, which
give a warm, emnotional touch to the enclosed dwelling.

Included as parts of the World Cultural Heritage
are two national treasures: Zhenguo Temple, 12 kilo-
meters northeast of the ancient city, and Shuanglin
Temple, six kilometers southwest of Pingyao. Both of
the two places are under special protection of the
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government. Zhenguo Temple was first built in the
seventh years of the Tianhui reign (963) of the North-
ern Han Dynasty. The period of Five Dynasties and
Ten States (907-960) was a short one in Chinese
history. Few of the temples and cultural relics of that
period are still in existence. The Hall of Ten-Thousand
Buddhas in the Zhenguo Temple is, therefore, a rare
treasure. For one reason, it is one of the oldest wooden
structures to be found on China's mainland. For another,
there are 14 statues in the hall. Except for the three ones
that belong to the Ming period, all the others are works
of the Five Dynasties period. Although they are reli-
gious idols, they were created and arranged according
to the social stratification of the time. The clothing,
ornaments and facial expressions of the statues are
closely associated with the social life of that particular
period. From these works, we can see that the artisans
of the Five Dynasties followed the Tang Dynasty (618-
907) style of sculpture that emphasized realistic
representation.

According to the inscription carved on the Aunt's
Tablet erected in the fourth year of the Dazhong
Xiangfu reign (1011) of the Northern Song Dynasty in
Shuanglin Temple, the temple was rebuilt in the second
year of the Wuping reign (571) of the Northern Qi
Dynasty. The date of construction of the temple should
have been much earlier than that date. The temple that
occupies 15,000 square meters of grounds is composed
of halls for the Heavenly Guardians, Sakyamuni, Arhats,
God of Warrior (Guan Yu), God of Earth, King of Hell,

Great Buddha, Thousand Buddhas, and Bodhisattvas
with more than 2,000 ancient painted statues in them.
All the clay statues are vividly and life-like, known as
an art strove of Oriental painted sculpture.

Also to be found in the ancient city of Pingyao are
the Hall of Great Accomplishments in the Confucius
Temple, which is the only existing structure built in the
Song Dynasty style; the statue of Confucius erected in
the Yuan Dynasty (1271-1368) inside the Confucius
Temple in the
desolate
Jingzhuang Vil-
lage is the only one
of its kind to be
found in China
because his face is
boldly and heavily
painted in color.
The niche housing
the statue is carved

exquisitely in

wood; the Qingxu Taoist Temple which has been
converted into a museum with opera figurines, the
works of a folk artist of nearly 100 years ago, preserved
in it; the old county government building, which is the
best preserved one in the whole country. the Temple of
the City God and the Temple of the God of Weaith,
which have been restored in recent years, are all impor-
tant components of the ancient city of Pingyao.
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Pingyao's city wall.
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